NANGIA & CO LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REFORT

To The Members of Sukhsagar Complexes Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Sukhsagar Complexes
Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 315t March, 2023
and the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, statement of
Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes to financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("IND AS”) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at 31t March, 2023, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS
Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the ‘Code of Fthics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
‘India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion on financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

» The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information obtained at the date of this auditor’s report is information included in the
Director's Report, Chairman’s statement, but does not include the Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

¢ Qur opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
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otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022, included in
these financial statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an
unmodified opinion on those statements on May 26, 2022,

Responsibilities of management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind
AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’'s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)
of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

001-005, Emaar Digital Greens Tower A
10th Floor, Sector - 61, Gurugram - 122102, India

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act,
we give in the “Annexure - A", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and
4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.
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2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), and the Cash Flow Statement (and statement of changes in equity) dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Acf, read with read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

e} On the basis of the written representations recelved from the directors as on 31
March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31%t March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act,

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure
B” to this report.

g) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to
the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023;

h) With respect to the other matters to be inciuded in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies {(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Ind AS financial statements - Refer Note 28 to the Ind AS
financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or
in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
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the Company (“"Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including
foreign entity ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or

provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of

Rule 1i{e), as provided under (a} and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has
not proposed final dividend for the year.

vi.  As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable
for the company only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not
applicable.

For Nangia & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRN 002391C/N500069

frembeck ﬂ-f]»mmal

Prateek Agrawal
Partner
Membership No. 402826

Signed at Gurugram on May 26, 2023
UDIN: 23402826BGVLAM4213
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Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditors Report
TRefer to in our separate report of even date]

Annexure referred to under the heading of “"Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our Report of even date to the members of Sukhsagar Complexes
Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended on March 31, 2023 and
based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view
on the financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information
and explanations given to us and the books of accounts and other records examined by us
in the normal course of audit, we report that:

1 In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

{a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

I {a)

including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and
Equipment in phased periodical manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
Pursuant to the program, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were due
for verification during the year and were physically verified by the
Management during the vyear. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

Title deeds in respect of all immovable properties are held in the name of
the company.

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment
and intangible assets during the year.

As confirmed by the management, no proceedings have been initiated
during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2023
for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

As explained to us physical verification of inventory has been conducted at
reasonable intervals by the management at reasonable interval in respect
of Food & Beverages and Stores and spares. In our opinion the coverage
and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate and
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(b)

there is no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of
inventory were noticed.

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of ¥
5 crore, in aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and hence
reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
examination of records of the Company, the Company has not made any
investments provided guarantee or security or granted any advance in the
nature of loan, secured or unsecured to Company, Firm, limited lability
partnership or any other parties during the year. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(iii)(a), {b), (c), (d), (e) and (f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and
guarantees, and securities provided, as applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to
be deposits. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Centrat
Government under subsection (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013
for the business activities carried out by the Company. Hence, reporting under
clause {vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In respect of statutory dues:

a) In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax,
duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material
statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax,
Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and
other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.
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b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no
amounts In respect of Income Tax, Goods and Services tax, Sales Tax,
Value Added Tax, Employee state Insurance, Duty of Excise, Duty of
Custom, Cess and Service Tax etc. that have not been deposited with the
appropriate authority on account of any dispute.

VIII As confirmed by the management, there were no transactions relating to
previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (43 of 1961).

IX {(a) As explained to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans
and other borrowings and in repayment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) As confirmed by the management, the Company has not been declared
willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority.

(c) The Company has applied term loans for the purpose for which the loans
were obtained.

(d) The Company did not raise any funds on short-term basis during the year
hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture,
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is
nct applicable to the Company.

X (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments} during the year and
hence reperting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares /fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures
during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(2) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has
been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year
and upto the date of this report.

{c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower
complaints received by the Company during the year.

As explained, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions
of para 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have
been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not
applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under
clause 3(xili) of the Order insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has implemented internal audit system on a voluntary basis
which is commensurate with the size of the Company and nature of its
business though it is not required to have an internal audit system under
Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected with its directors.
and hence provisions of section 132 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company.

In our opinicn, the Company is not required to be registered under section
45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause
3(xvi}(a), (b) (c) and (d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and
in the immediately preceding financial year as well.

There has been resignation of statutory auditor of the Company during the
year. However, based on information or explanation made available to us, the
outgoing auditor has not raised any issue, abjections or concerns.
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XIX

XX

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation
of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that
this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

In provisions related to Corporate Social Responsibilities is not applicable to
the Company as per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xx) of the order is not applicable for the year.

For Nangia & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRN 002391C/N500069

Pmbuk F"jmoaj

Prateek Agrawal

Partner,

Membership No. 402826

Signed at Gurugram on May 26, 2023
UDIN: 23402826BGVLAM4213
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Annexure ‘B’ to the Independent Auditors Report
[Refer to in our separate report of even date]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Sukhsagar
Complexes Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with
our audit of financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
*Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, bath
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Qur audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of interna! financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial cantrols over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Nangia & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAX FRN 002391C/N500069

Y 3 [\v‘zjfmwcd

Prateek Agrawal
Partner,

Membership No. 402826
Signed at Gurugram on May 26, 2023
UDIN: 23402826BGVLAM4213
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Sukhsagar Complexes Private Limited
CIN:U70101DL1993PTC172878
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per pur report of even date

For Nangia & Co. LLP
ICAT FRN 002391C/N500069
Chartered Accountants

Femdede byoad

Prateek Agrawal
Partner
Membership No. 402826

Place : wPirgfam
Date : May 26, 2023

Kapil Sharma

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Notes Rg in lakhs Rs in lakhs
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 4,470.57 4,509,335
Intangible assets 4 2,12 3.04
Financial assets 5
(i) Other financial assets 102.64 98.54
Other non-current assets 7 25.47 35,20
4,600.80 4.646.22
Current assets ’
Inventories 8 12.29 9.70
Financtal assets 9
(i} Trads receivables 20,83 18,51
(ii} Cash and cash equivalents 27.86 46.62
(iif) Other financial assets 0,58 0.58
Crther current assets 10 33.39 31,38
24,95 107.79
Total Assets 4,695.78 4.754,01
T EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 11 1,019.5¢ 1,019.50
Other equity 12 104,98 {77.10)
Total equity 1,120.48 942.40
Liahilities
Non-current liabilities :
Financial liabilitics 13
{i} Borrowings 667.65 2,179.15
Provisions 14 4.11 3.24
671,76 2,182.39
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities 15
{i) Borrowings 2,728.86 1,470.67
(i) Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 24,91 6.54
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 108,60 119,39
(iii) Qther financial liabilities 20.68 17.41
Other current liabilities 16 16,40 12.00
TProvisions 14 4.06 321
2.903.51 1,629.22
Total Liabilities 3,575.27 3.81L.61
Total Equity and Liabilities 4,695,753 4,734.01
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Sukhsagar Complexes Private Limited

Rajeew Janvej
{Wkole Time Diredior)
Din: 07334041

Arun Kumar
(Company Secretary)

CIN

(Chief Financial Officer)

M, No. 322056

Place : New Delhi
Daie 1 May 26, 2023

Din; 052B1572




Sukhsagar Complexes Private Limited
CIN:U701¢1DL1993PTC172878
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

For the year enderl For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Notes Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

Revenue from operations ' 17 1,169.79 582,92

Other income 18 0.58 2.00

Total Income - 117037 584.02

Expenses . .

Cost of materials consumed . 19 78.95 41.30

Employee benefits expense ) 20 191.73 114.94

Other expenses - 21 407.80 410,13

Total expenses 078.48 566.37

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation ' ' 491.89 18.55

(EBITDA)

Finance costs . 22 . . 256.04 314.06

Depreciation and anmortization éxpense 23 63.27 52.23
* Finance income 24 (6.23) (13.63)

Profit/(loss) before tax i 178.81 (334.11)

Tax expense . . -

Profit/(loss) for the year 178.81 ‘ {334.11)

Other comprehensive income )

Re-measurament gains/ (fosses) on defined benefit plang ) (0.73) 0.07

(0.73) 0.07

Total comprehensive loss for the year 178.08 {334.04)

Earnings per equity share: . 25 _

(1) Basic . 1.75 : (3.28)

(23 Diluted ) 1.75 (3.28)

Summary of significant aceounting policies ‘ 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For Nangia & Co, LLP ' For and on behaif of the Board of Directors of

ICAIL FRN 002391 C/N500069 Sukhsagdyr Complexes Private Limited
Chartered Accountants R

Fenleik. hjmmd

Prateck Agrawal
Partner
Membership No. 402826

Din: 67334001 Din: 05201572

o | M
Kapil Sharma ArumrKumar

{Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)
M. No. 3226

Place : Tt @ gffum Place : New Delhj
Date : May 26, 2023 Date : May 26, 2023




Sukhsagar Complexes Private Limited

CIN:U70101DL1993PTC172878

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023

A. Equitf Share Capital

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and No. of shares Amount
fully paid Rs in Jakhs
At April 1, 2021 1,01,95,000 1,019.50
Tssue of share capital - -
At March 31, 2022 1,61,95,000 1,019.50
Issue of share capital - -
At March 31, 2023 1,01,95,000 1,019.50
B. Other Equity
For the year ended March 31, 2023
Reserves and Surplus
Securities Premium
Capital reserve Reserve Retained Earnings Total equity
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Balance at April 1, 2021 37.00 724.57 (504.63) 256.94
Total Comprehensive loss for the year - {334.04) (334.04)
Balance at March 31, 2022 37.00 724.57 (838.67) (77.10)
Total Comprehensive logs for the year - - 178.08 178.08
Balance at March 31, 2023’ 37.00 724.37 (660.59) 100,98
Sumumary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes ate an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For Nangia & Co. LLP
ICAI FRN 002391 C/N500069
Chartered Accountants

Renbeck My cscal

" Prateek Agrawal
Partner
Membership No. 402826

Place : “ﬂw Wowam
Date : May 26, 2023

Raj :;\J anvej

{Whole Time Director)
Din; 02695031

WA

Kapil Sharma
(Chief Financial Officer)

Place : New Delhi
Date ; May 26, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sukhsagar Complexes Private Limited

Sumiant Jaidka
Director
Din; 05201572

M. No. 32722.6

gﬁw

run Kumar

(Company Secretary)




Sukhsagar Complexes Private Limited
CIN:U70101DL1993PTC172878
Statement of Cash flow for the year ended March 31,2023 -

Total cash and cash equivalents

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Operating activities : '
Loss before tax 178.81 (334.11)
Adjustments to reconcile profit/(loss) befare tax to net cash flows: '
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 63.27 52.23
Finance inceme (including fair value change in financial instruments) 6.22) (13.62)
Finance costs (including fair value change in financial instruments) 250.22 311.35
Provisicn for doubtfui debts (0.00) 110,60
. 486.08 126.45
Working Capital Adjustment:
Change in trade receivables (1.31) 6.62
Change in loans and advances and other current assets (6.08) 76.80
Change in inventories (2.59) 0.50
Change in liabilities and provisions 16.20 (38.40)
492.30 - 171.97
Income tax paid (net of refunds) 9.82 6.74)
Net cash flow from operating activities 502.12 165.23
Investing activities
Purchase of propetty, plant and equipment (23.57) {15.50)
_Finance income 6.22 13.62
Net Cash flow (used in)/ from investing activities (17.35) (1.88)
Financing activities
Proceeds from short-term borrowings 241.00 241.00
Repayment of short-term borrowings T64.80 {43.00)
Proceeds of long term borrowings - 650.00
Repayment of long term borrowings (1,260.67) (882.28)
Intorest paid (247.86) {307.08)
Net Cash from / ( used in ) financing activities (503.53) (341.386)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (18.76) (178.01)
Cash and cash cquivalents at the beginning of the year 46,62 224.63
Cash and eash equivalents at the end of the year 27.86 46.62
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 6.58 5.23
Balances with banks in
- current accounts 21.28 41.39
- deposits with original maturity of less than three months - -
27.86 46.62

Summary of significant accounting policies

As per our report of even date

For Nangia & Co. LLP .
1ICAT FRN 002391C/N500069
Chartered Accountants

Prabeck Ajmwd

Prateek Agrawal
Partocr
Membership No. 402826

Place : fusffy 3™
Date : May 26, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sukhsagar Complexes Private Limited .

I::j\ebv Janwg

{Whole Tim
T¥in: 02495031

WA
Kapil SHarma

{Chief Financial Officer)

Place ;: New Delhi
Date 1 May 26, 2023

Din: 03201572

Iy

 (Company Secretary)

M. No. 32224




Sukhsagar Complexes Private lelted
Notes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31 2023

2.1

2.2

(2)

Corporate Information

Sukhsagar Complexes Private Limited (the Company) is a private company domiciled in India
and is incorporated under the- prov151ons of the Companies Act applicable in India, The
registered office of the Company is located at Asset no. 6, Aerocity Hospitality District, New
Delhi- 110037

The p11n01pal activities of the Company are to carry out business of developing, owning,
acqumng, renovatmg and promoting hotels, motels, resorts, restamants etc.

The Financial Statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
directors on May 26, 2023,

Basis of preparation

Significant accounting policies :

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost or at amortised cost except

~ for the following assets and liabilities:

e Net defined benefit (asset)/liability :
e Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy
regarding financial instruments),

Accounting policies have been consistently apphed except where a newly issued accounting
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing account standard required a change to
the accounting policy hitherto to in use.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to
the nearest lakhs, expect where otherwise indicated

Summary of significant accounting policies

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading '

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other-assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when:

e 1tis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

Tt is held primarily for the purpose of trading

Tt is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the hablhty for at least twelve
months after the reporting period




Sukhsagar Complexes Private Limited
‘Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(b)

The Company classifies all other Habilities as non-current.
Deferred fax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acqulsltwn of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

Foreign currency transactions and balances
Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s entities at their
respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for

* recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average raie if the average

- approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction,

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary
itens measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in OCI or statement of profit and qus are also rccogmsed in OCI or
statement of profit and loss, respectively).

Fair value measurement ‘
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, investment in mutual funds at fair
valye at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:.
»  In the principal market for the asset or 11ab111ty, or
s In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability :

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
. b

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest. :

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market partibipant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the assct in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.




Sukhsagar Complexes Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

o JTevel 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

» Level 2 — Valuation techniques for Wthh the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement.is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair
value. External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. The
management selects external valuer on various criteria such as market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are maintained by valuer. The management
decides, after discussions with the Company’s external valuers, which valuatlon techniques
and 1nputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting
policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the Jatest
valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other
relevant documents.

The management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the -
change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine
whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and r1sl<s of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair valve related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes. :

Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (Note 26)
Contingent consideration (Note 28) :

Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (Note 30)

Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (Note 30}




Sukhsagar Complexes Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{d) Reverue recognition

In arrangements for room revenue and related services, the Company has applied the guidance
in Ind AS 115 for recognition of Revenue from contract with customer, by applying the
revenue recognition criteria for each distinct performance obligation. The arrangements with
customers generally meet the criteria for considering room revenue and related services as
distinct performance obligations. For allocating the transaction price, the Company has
measured the revenue in respect of each performance obligation of a contract at its relative
standalone selling price. The price that is regularly charged for an item when sold separately is
the best evidence of its standalone selling price.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is
being made. Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the
amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance
obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is met of variable
consideration on account of various discounts and schemes offered by the Company as part of
the contract. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty. The
Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting
as principal or agent. The Company has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its
revenue arrangements. The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met
before revenue is recognized.

Sales tax/ value added tax (VAT)/GST is not received by the Company on its own account.
Rather, it is tax .collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the
government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

Rooms,. Restaurant, Banquets and Other Services ,

Income from guest accommodation is recognized on a day to day basis after the guest checks
into the Hotels and are stated net of allowances. Incomes from other services are recognized
as and when services are rendered. Sales are stated exclusive of Service Tax, Value Added
Taxes (VAT),GST and Luxury Tax. Shortfall of revenue over the billed as at the year-end i8
carried in financial statement as unbilled revenue separately. :

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, sale of food and beverage arc recognized at
the points of serving these items to the guests. Sales are stated exclusive of Sales Tax/
VAT/GST. ‘

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and interest bearing financial assets
classified as available for sale, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. Interest income is included in finance
income in the statement of profit and loss. '

Dividends ‘ . , ‘
Revenue is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which
is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Gain/(loss) on sale of investment in mutual funds

Gain/(loss) on sale of investment in mutual funds is recorded as other income on transfer of
- title from the Company and is determined as the difference between the redemption price and
carrying value of the investments.




‘Sukhsagar Complexes Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(e) Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured as the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where
the Company operates and generates taxable income. :

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and lossis
recognised outside statement of profit and loss(either in other comprehensive income or in
equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax ‘

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date. '

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e ‘When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or

" liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. .

e In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of umused tax credits and any unused tax losscs. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can

- be utilized,except: ‘

e When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss. - : '

e In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foresecable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilized. :

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

R
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

®)

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and lossis recognised
outside statement of profit and loss(either in other comprehensive income or in equity).
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or
directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to

~ set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same

taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Property, plant and equipment -

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, met of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes its purchase primport duties and
non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates; any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset o the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by managementand borrowing costs for long-term
construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. -

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a
major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and

maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit and lossas incurred. '

The present value of the expected. cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is
included in the cost of the respective assef if the recognition criteria for a provision are-met.

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided as per Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013 on
Straight Line Method over its economic useful life of fixed assets as follows:

Fixed Assets Useful life considered
: (SL.M)

Plant & Machinery : 15 Years

Building 60 Years
Electrical installations and fittings : 10 Years

Office Equipment’s ' 5 Years

Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years

Vehicles . 8 Years
Computers 3 Years

The Company, based on management estimates, depreciates certain items of building, plant
and equipment over estimated useful lives which are lower than the useful life presecribed in
Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful
lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely '
to be used. - :

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
income statement when the asset is derecognized. -

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, pIant and

- equipment are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate,
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(8 Intangible assets

Intangible asscts acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated
intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in statement of profit and loss in the period in which the expenditure
is incurred. '

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or
the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as
changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite
lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of
carrying value of another asset.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as below:
e Software 3 years

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite
life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable.
If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognized in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

{(h) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

()] Inventories
Stock of food & beverages, stores and operating supplies are valued at lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on a first in first out
basis.Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated cost of completion and estimated costs necessary to make sale.

)] Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair valueless costs of
disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or Company of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
Yecoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
»imount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
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(k)

present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks. specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent
market fransactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair -
value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations,
which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets
are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years.
For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash
flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the
most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget
using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be
justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for
the products, industries, or country in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the
asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. ‘ '

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or
have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the
Jast impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the
asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of statement of profit and loss unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation
increase.

Provisions

General : : .

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of & provision to be
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current

- pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When

discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a
finance cost,
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Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The
Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when
an employee renders the related service, If the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance shect date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already
paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before
the balance sheet date, then excess is-recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment
will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Gratuity liability is defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial
valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year.

Short term ‘compensated absences are provided for based on estimates. Long term
compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation, The actuarial valuation
is done as per projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the refurn
on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability),
are recognised.immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to staternent of profit and lossin subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in statement of profit and losson the earlier of:
o The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and _
» The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or
asset. The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as
an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
e Net interest expense or income

The Company treats leaves expected to be-carried forward for measurement purposes. Such
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the
statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Company presents the entire leave as a
current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its
settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where Company has the unconditional
legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the samé is
presented as non-current liability.

Financial instruments ,
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
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Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement &

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through statement of profit and loss, transaction costs that are -
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. However, trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price, Purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way: trades) are recognised on the trade
date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. '

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurcment, financial assets are classified in following

categories:

» Debt instruments at amortised cost _

o Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCE)

o Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through statement of
profit and loss(FVTPL) '

» Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A debt instrument is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. '

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method, Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fces or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies
to trade and other receivables, loans to subsidiaries etc. For more information on receivables,
refer to Note 9.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A debt instrument is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and '

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at
each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income,
impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss' previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from the equity to P&L. Inferest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument
is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVIPL , . :
. FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet
the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCIL, is classified as at FVTPL.
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In addition, the Company may clect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FEVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or climinates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL,

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the P&L.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s
consolidated balance sheet) when:

* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
o The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither
- transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
.entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the
risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability, The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
risk exposure: :

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans,
debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

¢} Lease receivables under Ind AS 116

d) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset

e} Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

f) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

s Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
» All'lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 1 16
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For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial -
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
1mpa1rment loss. However, if credit risk has increased s1gmﬁca11tly, lifetime ECL is used. If,
ina subsequent permd credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to
recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL:

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL
which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date,

ECL is the difference between' all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.c., all
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estlmatlng the cash flows, an entlty is
required to consider:

e All confractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension,
call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However,
in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated
reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the
financial instrument ‘

e Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other crédit enhancemenis that are
integral to the contractual terms :

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the
head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial
instruments is described below:

s Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and
lease receivables; BECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net
carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not

‘reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair
value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is
presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount’ in the OCI,

Fi inancial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurenent

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through statement of profit and loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

- The Company g financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafis, iinanmal guarantee confracts and derlvatwe financial instruments.
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Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through statement of profit and loss.

Financial labilities at fair value through statement of profit and lossinclude financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through statement of profit and loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category
also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments.

Gains ot losses on Jiabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through statement of
profit and loss are designated as such af the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria
in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses
atiributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not
subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or
loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability arc recognised in the

~ statement of profit and loss. The Company has pot designated any financial liability as at fair
value through statement of profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings .

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing
Joans and borrowings are subséquently measured at amortised cost using the FIR method.
Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are
derccognised as well as through the ETR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category génerally applies to borrowings. For more information, refer Note 13.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company arc those confracts that require a
payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently,
the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per
impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative
amortisation. '

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a mew liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
" new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial
recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are
equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those
assets. Changes to the busincss model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior
management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal
changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to
external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or
ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies
financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date
which' is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the. change in
business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses
(including impairment gains or losses) or interest. ' - ' '

The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:

Original | | Revised Accounting treatment
classification | classification o
Amortised cost FVTPL Fair value is measured at teclassification date.

Difference between previous amortized cost and
: fair value is recognised in P&L.
FVTPL Amortised Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new

Cost gross carrying amount. EIR is calculated based on
. - the new gross cafrying amount.
Amortised cost FVTOCI | Fair value is measured at reclassification date.

Difference between previous amortised cost and fair
value is recognised in OCL No change in EIR due
to reclassification. :
FVTOCI Amortised cost | Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new |
amortised cost carrying amount. However,
cumulative gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against
fair value. Consequently, the asset is measured as if
it had always been measured at amortised cost,

FVTPL FVTOCI - | Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new

. carrying amount. No other adjustment is required.
FVTQOC(I FVTPL Assets continue to be measured 'at fair value.

Cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in
OCI is reclassified to P&L at the reclassification
‘date.

Offsetting of financial instruments _ , :
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously. '
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Redeemable preference shares
Redeemable preference shares are separated into [iability and equity components based on the
terms of the contract,

On issuance of the redeemable preference shares, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible instrument. This amount is

classified as a financial liability measured at amortised cost (net of transaction costs) until it is

extinguished on conversion or redemption.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the
convertible preference shares based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity

- components when the instruments are initially recognised.

Cash and cash equwalents _
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet compuse cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, wh1cl1 are subj ect to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. :

Segment reporting policies

Identification of segments

The management of the Company reviews the specific performance of its respective hotel
properties. However, since all hotels have similarity in terms of products and services,
customer classes, method of providing services and the regulatory environment, the
individual hotels qualify for aggregation. Thus, the management has considered aggregating
all the hotels as one reportable operating segment. Accordingly, the figures appearing in these
financial statements relate to the Company’s single operating segment.

Measurement of EBITDA

The Company has elected to present carnings before interest, tdx, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss.
The Company measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In
its measurement, the Company does not include depreciation and amortization expense,
interest income, finance costs and tax expense. -
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5 TFinancial assets

{a) Other financial assets -

Security deposits
Naon current bank balances
Interest accrued on non current bank balances

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

13,93 13.97
48.52 48,52
40.19 36.05

102.64

98.54
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6 Deferred tax assets

Pro]ierty, plant & equipment

Deferred tax liability

Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the cutrent/ earlier
_ period but aliowable for tax purpeses on payinent basis

Provision for doubtful debts and advances

Effect of unabsorbed depreciation and business loss

Provision for gratuity

Provision for leave compensation

Borrowing cost

Deferred tax assets
Net deferred tax asset/{liability) -

As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

286.10 274.67

286.10 274.67

3.87 3.70

27.24 28.93

219.12 202.48

1.38 113

0.62 0.54

33.87 37.88

286.10 274.67

Note : Deferred tax asset for the current year has been restricted on losses and credits has been recognized 1o the extent of

Deferred tax liability

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for year March 31, 2023 and March 31,

2022:

Loss before tax

Tax rate

Tax at statutory income tax rate _
Deferred tax asset on losses not recognized
Net

Other non-current assets

Advance income tax (net of provision for taxation}
-Total

Inventories )
(valued at lower of cost and net realisable value, unless otherwise stated)

Food and beverages (excluding liquor, wines and smokes).
Stores and spares

Total

Asat

As at
‘March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
178.81 (334.11)
24.48% 26,00%
43,78 (86.87)
(43.78) 86.87
As at As at )
March 31, 2023 Match 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
25.47 3529
25.47 35.29
Asat . As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
2.63 2.02
9,66 - 7.68
12.29 9.70
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9

M

@)

Financial assets ' As at As at
Mareh 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables* 20.83 19,51

20.83 : 19.51

* refer note 36(c) for agewise outstanding of tracie receivables

Break-up for security details:

Trade receivables ‘ : .
Unsecured, considered good 20.83 19.51
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 111.26 111.26
. ‘ 132.09 130.77
Impairment allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts) v
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 111.26 111.26
111.26 111.26
Total trade reccivables - . 20.83 19.51
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days,
Cash and cash equivalents ] © Asat As at
: March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
: : Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Balance with banks ‘
On current accounts ' 21.28 41.39
Cash on hand 6.58 5.23
: ‘ : 27.86 46.62
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:
As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Particulars '
Balances with banks '
on current accounts : 21.28 41.39

Cash on hand . ) : 6.58 5.23

Total cash and cash equivalents . o : 27.86 46,62
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(iii)) Other financial assets

10

Security deposits

Break up of current financial assets carried at amortised cost

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Security deposits

Total current financial assets carried at amortised cost

Other current assets

Advarce for supply of goods and rendering of services
Subsidy recoverable .

Balance with statutory/ government authorities
Prepaid expenses ’

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

0.58 0.38
0.58 0.58
20.83 19.51
27.86 46.62
0.58 0.58
49,27 66.71
As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
109 0.08
2.80 2.80
24.82 2395
4.68 4,55
31.38

33.39
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11 Equity share capital

Avghorised Share Capltal . Equlty shares

Na, of shiares Rg in Iakhs
At April 1, 2021 15,680,000 1,568,00
Increase on acconnt of reclassification of preferance shares into quity shares - .
At March 31, 2022 15,480,000 1,568,00
Increasef{decrease) during the year - - \
At March 31,2023 15,680,000 1,568.00

a) Termsrights atéacked to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 1{ per share, Bach holder of equity shares 1s entitled to one vote per shate, In the event of liguidarion of the
compeny, the holders of squity sheres will be entitled to recetve remaining assets of the company, after distribution of ell preferentil amounts, The distribution will be in proportion
to the mumber of equity shares held by the shareholders.

B

Issued equlty capital®

Lauity shares of INR 10 each (ssued, subscribed and fully pald

At April 1, 2021
Tssued duting thr vear
At March 31, 2822
Issued during thr year
At March 31, 2023

* refer note 36{A) for the details of promoters holding

¢) Bhares held by holding company

Equity shares of Re, 10 cach fully paid up

Lemon Tree Hotels Linited

Details of sharehelders bolding more than 5% shares io the cempany

Equlty shares of Re. 16 each ful!y pald up

Lemot Tree Hotels Limited

E=3

Particnlars

Equity Shares .
At the commencerment of the year
Add: Tssned during the year

At the end of the year

No, of shares Rs in lakhs

Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the heginning and at the end of the year {expressed in absolufe numbers)

10,195,000 101950
- 10,195,000 1,019.50
14,195,000 1,019.50
Asat Asal
Merch 3, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in takhs Rs in Jakhs
No, of shares Rs In Jakhs No. of shares Rg in lakdig
10,195,000 1,019.50 10,195,000 1,019.50
No. of shares % held as at N, of shares % held as at March
March 31, 2022 31,3021
10,195,000 100.00% 10,195,000 100.00%
Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rsin lnkhs - _Re in lakhs
10,195,000 10,195,000
10,195,000 10,195,000

&) The Company has uot issned Bonus Share, Share for consideration other than Cash and hes not bought bacl sheres during the period of five yeors immediately preceding the

reporting date.

=

Other equity

Secnrities premium
At April 1, 2021

Add ¢ Premiun on equity shares issned during the year

At March 3E, 2022

Add : Premium on equity shares issusd during the year

At March 31, 2023

Retained earnings”

At April 1, 2021 X
Profit/{less) for the'year
At March 31, 2022
Profit/{loss) for the year
At Muarch 31,2023

:ﬁ Rs in lakhs
T24.57

724,57

724,57

RS In lakhs

(504,63)
(334,04)

(838.67)
178,08

C (66059}

¥ jucludes Revaluation Reserve of Rs, 1,500 lakhs transfeered to retained earnings on the date of transition (i.e April 1, 2015) fiom FGAAP 10 Ind AS

Capital reserve'(E_quity Component of redeeniable preference shares)

At April 1, 2021 .
Tncrease/{{lecrense) during the yea
At March 31, 2022
Increase/(checrease) during the year
At March 31, 2023

Other reserves
Securities premium
Retained earnings
Capital resetvo

Capital reserve represents equity component of 5% resdeemable preference shares.

Rs In lakhs

37.00
3700
3740
Asat As pt
Mareh 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Rs In lakhis Rg in lakhs
T24.57 724,57
(660.59) {838,67)
.00 37.00
100.98 {77,100
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13

14

Borrowings . As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

Non-current borrowings

Term Loans
Indian rupee loans from Banks (Secured)

HBDFC Bank Limited (Refer note T & 2 below} . 667.65 2,179.15
Total nop-¢urrent borrowings 667.65 2,179.15

Current borrowings

Term Loans

Current maturity of long term loans .

HDFC Bank Limited (Refer note 1 & 2 below) - 1,513.86 1,260.67
‘Total current borrowings . 1,513.86 1,260.67
Less: Amount clubbed under “current borrowings” (1,513.86) (1,260.67)

Net current borrowings ' - -

Term loans
1,) Terms attached to loan from HDFC Bank Limited : -
The Loan {s secured by
a) Exclusive Charges by way of Equitable mortage on all of the project's (Red Fox hctel situated at Khasra No. 102/103/433
village jhalana, JEN Marg, Jeipur) land and building.
b} Exclusive charge on Company's hotel movebles, including movable plant and machinery, machinery spares, farniture and
fixtures and all other movable assets, present and future. .
©) Exclusive charge on Project's current assets - book debts, operating cash flows, reccwables, commnissions, bank accounts both
present and future, all revenue..
d) Unconditional and irtevocable Corporate guarantee of parent company Lemon Tree Hotels Limited.
€) Pledge Shares of the Company held by Lemon Tree Hotels Limited.
Rate of interest is 8.33% p.a (March 31, 2022: 8.05%).

2)WCTL of Rs, 650 lakhs is repayablc in 48 equal monthly instalments after 1 year of moratorium and It is secured by second
charge over existing primary and collateral securities including mortgages created i in favour of the bank w.r.t (Red Fox Hotel
siluated at Khasra No.102/103/433, Village Jhalana , J.L.N. Marg , Jaipur) 1, 100% Credit Guarantee from National Credit
Guarantee Trustee Company Limited. Rate of interest is 8.77% p.a (March 31, 2022: 8.25%).

3) The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans and interest at Balance Sheet date.

4) Bank loans availed by the Company are subject to certain covenants 1elat1ng to interest coverage ratio, debt service coverage
ratic, capital gearing ratio, fixed assets coverage ratio.

5} The Company has complied/ taken waiver for the covenants as per the terms of the loan agreement.

6) The Company has complied all significant covenants from bank and financial institutions as per the terms of the loan
agreemeht, .

7) Basis on several terms and conditions as specefied in sanction letters, the company submits quarterly returns/statements of
current assets with banks/ financial institution and these returns/stalements are in agreement with the books of accounts,

‘Provisians Asat Asat
‘ March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in [akhs Rs in lakhs
Provision for gratuity (refer note 27) )
Current 1.52 ©OLL
Non-current ' 411 3.24
' 5.63 _4.35
Provision for leave benefits
Current 2.54 2.10
’ 2.54 - 2,10
Total current 4,06 3.21

Total non-current S 4,11 3.24
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15 Tinancial liabifities

@

@)

(i)

16

Borrowings
Loan from holding company (refer note below)
Current maturities of long-term borrowings (refer note 13)

Note - Loan from holding company is non interest bearing and is repayable on demand
Trade payables

Trade Payables®
-Micro and small enterprises
-Other than micro and small enterprises

* refer note 36(D) for agewise outstanding of trade payable

Trade payables
Trade payables to related parties

Other finaneial liabilities

Interest accrued but not due
Outstanding dues of employees

Break up of current financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

Particulars

Current matwities of long-term barrowings
Trade payables
Quistanding dues of employees

Total financial Habilities measared at amortised cost

Other curreiit lighilities
i

Advance recelved from cusiomers

Statutory abilities

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
1,215.00 210.00
1,513.86 1,260.67
2,728.86 1,470.67
As at As at
~ March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
24,91 6.54
108.60 119.39
133.51 125.93
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
119.76 - 112,18
13.75 13,75
133.51 125.93
As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
195 -
18.73 1741
I
20.68 17.41
As at As af
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
2,728.86 1,470.67
133,51 125,93
18.73 17.41
2,881.10 1,614.01
Asat Asat
Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs s in lakhs
7.01 7.33
1939 4.67
16.40 12.00
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17 Revenue from operations

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2623 March 31, 2022
Rsin lakhs Rs in lakhs
Sale of products and services
Room rentals 1,004.74 495 86
Food and beverage (exciuding liquor and wing) 94,39 46,52
Other services 70.66 36.54
1,164.79 582.92
18 Other income For the year ended For the year ended
' March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
‘Sale of scrap © 058 0.15
Miscellaneous Income ' : - ©1.85
0.58 2.00
19 Cost of materials consumed - For the vear ended For the year ended
) March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lalkhs
{a) Consumption of fuod & beverages excludmg liquor & wine -
Inventory at the beginning of the year . ' 2.02 2.07
Add: Purchases 79.56 40.84
. ' ‘ 81.58 - 4291
Less: Inventoryat the end of the year 2.63 2.02
Cost of food and beverage consumed 78.95 40.89

(b Cpnsuinption of liquor & wine
Inventory at the beginning of the year : _ - .41
Add: Purchases - -

: - 0.41

Less: Inventoty at the end of the year . - -
Cost of liguor and wine consumed - 0.41
78.95 41.30

20 Employee benefit expense For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lalhs Rs in Jakhs
Sataries, wages and bonus : 168.73 102,18
Contribution to provident fund and other fund ! 14.28 8.71
Gratuity expense ‘ 0.84 0.77
Staff welfare and training expenses . 7.88 328

191.73 ) 114.94
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21 Other expenses

Consumption of stores, cutlery, crockery, linen, provisions and others

Power and fuel
Management foes
Commission -other than sole selling agent
Linen & uniform washing and laundry expenses
Guest transportation
Subscription charges
Repair and maintenance expenses
- Buildings
- Plant and machinery
- Others -
Rent
Rates and taxes
Insurance

- Communication costs
Printing and stationery
Traveling and conveyance
Adgvertising and sales promotion
Security and cleaning expenses
Membership and subscriptions
Legal and professional fees

" Provision for doubtful debt, loans, advances etc.

Payment to auditors
Equipment hire charges

" Miscellanecous expenses

Pavient to auditors
Statutory audit fees
Tax audit fees

Others

22 Finance costs

Interest
- on term loans from banks
- on others

Bank charges (including commission on credit card collection}

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in laklis Rs in lakhs
30.51 15.62
126.90 105,99
27.88 21.25
7L.89 33.51
22.36 13.27
7.18 322
5.45 348
9.74 3,70
30.72 21,09
9,12 9.43
2.37 2,40
7.62 8.24
1.69 4.37
3.24 2.66
4.69 2.4
2.86 1.20
. L34 6.05
31.7% 23,11 -
0.65 0.65
6.08 15.05
- 110,60
1.03 1.03
1.67 0.74
1.02 0.72
407.80 410,13
0,55 0.55
0.12 012
0.36 0.36
1.03 1.03
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 . Mareh 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
248.05 311.35
217 < -
5.82 - 271
256.04 314.06
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23 Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of tangible assets
Amortization of intangible assets

24 Finance income

Interest income on ;
- Income tax refund
- Bank deposits

25 Earnings per share (Basic and Diluted)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
62.35 51,67
0.92 0,56
63.27 52.23
For the year ended For the vear ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
1.63 0.76
4.60 12.85
6,23 13.63

Basic EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the company by the weighted average

pumber of Equity shares cutstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are caloulated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of
Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Bquity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the

dilutive potentia} Equity shares into Equity shares.

The following data reflects the inputs to caloulation of basic and dilnted EPS

Loss after tax S o
Loss for caleulation of basic and diluted EPS

Weighted average number of Equity shares for basic EPS
Weighted average number of Equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating diluted EPS

Basic and diluted EPS

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rsin lakhs

178.08 (334.04)
178.08 {334.04)

10,195,000 10,195,000

10,195,000 10,195,000

1.75 (3.28)
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26.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, the
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these judgements,
estimates and assumptions could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the camrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. Existing circumstances and assumptions about
future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond
the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptlons when they occur. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and the revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised.

Critical judgements, estimates and assumptions

a. Impairment of property, plant and equipment

" Each hotel property is an identifiable asset that generates cash inflows and is independent of the cash

inflows of the other hotel properties, hence identified as cash generating units, The Company assesses the
carrying amount of hotel properties (CGU) to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. Where the carrying amount of CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss (if any) is
recogmsed in the statement of proﬁt and loss,

While assessing the recoverable amount, the Company used the discounted cash flow"approach including
various significant estimates and assumptions such as forecast of future revenue, operating margins, growth
rate and selection of the discount rates. The key assumptions used for the calculations are as follows:

Particulars : | : As at March 31, 2023
Discount rate (pre tax rate of WACC) o 12.50%
Long term growth rate _ : 5.50%

As at March 31, 2023, the estimated recoverable amount of the CGU exceeded its carrying amount.

b. Loss allowance on trade receivables

An impairment analysis of trade receivables is performed at each reportmg period based on the Company’s
history of collections, customer’s creditworthiness, existing market conditions as well as forward 100kmg
estimates. Basis this assessment, the allowance for doubtful frade receivables as -at March 31, 2023 is
considered adequate.

- 27, Grateity and other post-employment henefit plans

Rs. in lakhs
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Gratuity plan - | 5.63 , 4.35

Total ' 5.63 4.35

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of
Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service is enfitled to
specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at
retirement age. The Company makes provision of such gratuity asset/ liability in the books of accounts
¢ basis of actuarial valuation as per the Projected unit credit method.
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The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Comﬁany’s plans are shown
below:

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

: _ % %
Discount rate 7.20% - 6.10%

Future salary increases ‘ 5.00% 5.00%

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022
is as shown below: . :

India gratuity plan:

March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,

. 2023 2023 2023 2023
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level 1% 1% 1% ' 1%
increase -~ - decrease increase decrease
Impact on defined benefit _
obligation _ (0.16). 0.17 0.17 (0.17)
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2022 2022 2022 2022
Assumptions ~ Discount rate ' Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level 1% 1% 1% 1%
increase decrease | increase decrease
Impact on  defined  benefit

obligation (0.13) 0.14 0.14 (0.14)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on
defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of

the reporting period.
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The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

For the year ended For the vear ended

Duration (Years) ' March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

| 1.57 1.15
2 1.25 ' 0.89
3 0.97 ' 0.74
4 0.76 0.58
3 0.61 0.47
.Above 5 ' , 2.04 1.58
Total expected payments - 7.20 5.41

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 5 years
(March 31, 2025: 4 years).

~

28. Commitments and contingencies
a. - Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for:

At March 31, 2023, the Company had NIL commitments (March 31, 2022: Rs NIL)

. Contingent liabilities

Claims against the Company net acknowledged as debts

Malviya National Institute of Technology, Jaipur (“MNIT”) filed an application before the Sub-
divisional Officer (“SDO”), Jaipur against, among others, Sukhsagar Complexes Private Limited (one of
the subsidiary), alleging that a portion of the land on which Red Fox Hotel, Jaipur has been constructed
is owned by MNIT. Pursuant to an order dated December 31, 1999, the SDO, Jaipur, recorded certain
land bearing khasra number 102/433 in the name of Gulab Chand and certain others, while removing the
name of Malviya. Regional Engineering College, the predecessor entity to MNIT, Against the order of

‘the SDO, MNIT filed an appeal {(appeal no. 327/2013) before the Divisional Commissioner, Jaipur

(“Commissioner”), against Gulab Chand, GirdharilalManinar and Gopal DasJohar, being the previous .
owners of the property sold to Sukhsagar, and also, among others, Sukhsagar, stating that Sukhsagar and
Devashish Builders Private Limitéd had encroached on the land belonging to MNIT. The appeal was
dismissed by the Commissioner pursuant to an order dated January 8, 2013 and the order passed by the
SDO, dated December 31, 1999, was confirmed. Subsequently, Sukhsagar filed a review petition before’

“the Commissioner challenging the order dated January 8, 2013 on grounds of certain procedural

irregularities. The Commissioner, through an order dated September 4, 2013, recalled its previous order -
dated January 8, 2013. The Cominissioner eventually dismissed the appeal filed by MNIT through an
order dated September 11, 2013. MNIT filed a writ petition before the High Court of Rajasthan
challenging the order of the Commissioner, dated September 11, 2013. The proceedings have taken up
and now listed on May 29, 2023 for further proceedings, and is likely to be listed in due course. The
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proceedings are in progress & the management based upon its assessment and expert’s advice believes

that any liability is improbable to crystallize.

Other Contingent liabilities

Rs. in lakhs

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

~|a. |Counter guarantees issued in respect of guarantees issued

by company’s bankers - 2.60
¢. |In respect of matters pending with consumer courts

The Company has been advised by its legal counsel that it

is only possible, but not probable, that the action will _ 450 4.50

succeed. Accordingly, no provision for any liability has
been made in these financial statements.
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29, Related Party Transactions

. a) Names of related parties where control exisfs irrespective of whether transactions have
occurred , _
Holding company . Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Fellow Subsidiary Company Canary Hotels Private Limited
: ‘ Carnation Hotels Private Limited
Oriole Dr Fresh Hotels Private Limited
Enterprise in which holding company has significant Mind Leaders Learning India Private Limited -

influence

Key Management Personnel Mr. Sumant Jaidka(Director)
Mr. Rajeev Janveja (Whole Time Director)

b) Additional related parties as per Companies Act 2013 with whom transactions have taken place during
the year: - oo

Chief Financial Officer Mr. Kapil Sharma (w.e.f November 30, 2021)

Company Secretary _ - Mr. Arun Kumar (CS)(w.e.f January 01, 2022) -
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The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for

the relevant financial year -

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Year Ended

Enterprise in

Holding  [Fellow [ lich Holding
Transactions with Related Party ‘e Company has
Company  [Subsidiary |, .
significant
influence
:Amount Received on behalf of party
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 31-Mar-23 - - -
31-Mar-22 0.39 - T
Oriole Dr, Fresh Hotels Private Limited 31-Mar-23 1.35
31-Mar-22 -
Amount Received .by the company
Fleur Hotels Private Limited 31-Mar-23 0.25 - -
31-Mar-22 - - -
‘[Loans '(taken)
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 31-Mar-23 1,055.00 - -
31-Mar-22 241.00 - -
Carnation Hotels Private Limited 31-Mar-23 - ~ 80000 -
. 31-Mar-22 - - -
Loan (Repaid) '
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 31-Mar-23 850.00 - -
' ' 31-Mar-22 4228 - -
Management fees (Common cost allocation)
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 31-Mar-23 | 27.55 - ;
31-Mar-22 21.25 - -
Reimbursement of expenses
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 31-Mar-23 0.32 - -
31-Mar-22 0.68 - -

Subscription in Equity share capital of the Company
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Enterprise in

Year Ended . which Holding
. . : Holding Fellow .
Transactions with Related Party C oy {Company has
_ ompany  [Subsidiary |, .
significant
influence
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 31-Mar-23 - - -
3i-Mar-22 - - -
Guarantee Received
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 31-Mar-23 | 4,300.00 - -
31-Mar-22 | 4,300.00 - -
Balance Qutstanding at year end
Loan Received
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 31-Mar-23 415.00 - -
' : 31-Mar-22 210.00 - -
Carnation Hotels Private Limited 31-Mar-23 - 800.00 -
31-Mar-22 - - -
Trade Payable .
[emon Tree Hotels Limited 31-Mar-23 17.93 - -
31-Mar-22 13.75 - -
Mind Leaders Learning India Private Limited 31-Mar-23 - - -
31-Mar-22 - - 0.40
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Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in
arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and
settlement occurs in cash. For the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company has not recorded any
impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (March 31, 2022: Rs Nil}. This
assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related
party and the market in which the related party operates.

Commitments with related parties

The Company has not entered into any commitments with related parties during the year.

30. Fair value measurement

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company.and
provides additional information on the balance sheet. Details of significant accounting policies,
including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and
expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity
instrument

a. Financial instraments by category

Rs. in lakhs

March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
FVTPL Amortised cost |- FVTPL Amortised cost

Financial Assets

Trade receivables - 20.83 - 19.51
‘Cash and cash equivalents - 27.86 - 46.62
Other financjal assets - 103.22 | - 99,12
Total Financial Assets - 151.91 - 165.25
: Rs. in lakhs

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

FVTPL: Amortised cost

FVIPL Amortised cost

Financial Liabilities

Liabilities

Borrowings . - 3,396.51 - 3,649.82
Trade payables - 133.51 - 125,93
Other financial liabilities - 20.68 - . 17.41
Total Financial ) 3’550‘70- ) 3.793.16

Fair value measurement

. Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions.

The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels

depending on the ability to observe inputs employed in their measurement which are described as

follows: -

i} Level 1

Mputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
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if) Level 2

Inputs are inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly, other than quoted prices included
within level 1 for the asset or liability.

iii) Level 3

Inpuis arc unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting significant modifications to
observable related market data or Company’s assumptions about pricing by market participants.

There are no financial assest’s and liabilities as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 measured at
fair value. :

The management assessed that fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade
payables, bank overdrafis, Interest accrued on bank deposits with banks, other current financial assets
and other current financial liabilities approximates their carrying amounts largely due to the short-
term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of loans, security deposits, borrowings and other financial assets and liabilities are
considered to be the same as their fair values, as there is an immaterial change in the lending rates.

31. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other
payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations and to
support its operations. The Company's financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and
cash & cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior
management oversees the management of .these risks. The Company's senior management is .
supported by a financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial
risk governance framework for the Company. This financial risk committee provides assurance to the
Company's senior management that the Company's financial risk activities are governed by
.appropriate policies and procedure and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in
accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each risk, which are summarised as below:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk,
currency risk and other price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include Joans and
borrowings, deposits and payables/receivables in foreign currencics.

lnterest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will

~ fluctuate because of changes in market inferest rates. The Company’s exposure fo the risk of changes
in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating
interest rates. The Company is carrying its borrowings primarily at variable rate. The Company
expects the variable rate to decline, accordingly the Company is currently carrying its loans at variable
interest rates. :

Rs. In Lakhs

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Variable rate borrowings 2,181.51 3.439.82
Fixed rate borrowings 1,215.00 210.00
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Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on
that portion of loans and borrowings affected, after the impact of hedge accounting. With all other
variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating
rate borrowings, as follows:

Rs. In lakhs
Encrease/decrease in| Effect on profit
basis points - "before tax
March 31, 2023
50 ' - 1475
- -50 (14.75)
March 31, 2022 .
50 19.24
-50 (19.24)
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating
activities (primarily trade receivables and deposits to landlords) and from its financing activities,
including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other
financial instrements.

Trade receivables and Secirity Deposits

Customer credit risk is managed by business through the Company's established policy, procedures and
control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of each customer is assessed and
credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment, Outstanding customer receivables and
sccurity deposits are regularly monitored. ' :

An impairment analysis is performed for all major customers at each reporting date on an individual
basis. In addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous group and
assessed for impairment collectively. The calculation is based on historical data. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets
disclosed in note 9. The Company evaluates the concentration. of risk with respect to trade receivables
as low, as its customers are located in several Jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely
independent markets.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company has no exposure in foreign currency.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating
activities (primarily trade receivabics) and from its ﬁnancing activities including loans to refated
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(a) Trade receivables >

Customer credit risk is managed by each business location subject to the Company's established
policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management, Credit quality of a
customer is assessed and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with the assessment both in
terms of number of days and amount.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In
addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for
impairment collectively. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying
value of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 9. The Company does not hold collateral as
security. '

(h) Financial instruments and cash deposits

‘Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury
department in accordance with the Companty's policy. Investment of surplus funds are made only with
approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty, The Company's
maximum exposure to credit risk.for the components of the balance sheet at 31 March 2023 and 31
March 2022 is the carrying amount as iflustrated in Note 9.

Gross carrying amount of trade receivables

. Rs. In lakhs

Ageing March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Not due ' ' - -
0-60 days past due 20.83 8.77
61-120 days past due : i - , 5.27
121-180 days past due - _ 5.47
180-365 days past due o -

1 365-730 days past due - -

Provision for doubtful debts(including provision for expected credit losses)

: Rs. In lakhs
Ageing March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Not due - -
0-60 days past due - 102.85
61-120 days past due - - 1.64
121-180 days past due - 0.34
180-365 days past due - 0.06
365-730 days past due 111,26 6.37
Reconciliation of provision for doubtful debts - Trade receivables
: Rs, In lakhs

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Provision at beginning 111.26 0.606
Addition during the year - 110,60
Reversal during the year - -
Utilized during the year - -
Provision at closing 111.26
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Liquidity risk

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds by estimating the future cash flows. The
Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of bank overdrafts, cash credit facilities and bank loans. The Company assessed the
concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has
access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding and debt maturity within 12 months can be rolled
over with existing lendérs. )

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on
contractual discounted payments.

_ Rs. in lakhs
On Less than 3 3 to 12 1 to 5 > 5 Total
demand n_mnths months years years
Year ended
March 31, 2023 _ .
Borrowings(Other 1,21500 36.11 1,477.75  668.06 - 339692
than preference share)
Trade and  other 133.51 - - - - 133.51
payables '
Financial Liabilities 20.68 - - - - 20.68
' 1,369.19 36.11 147775 - 668.06 - 3,551.11
Year ended '
March 31, 2022 ‘
Borrowings(other than 210.00 36.11 1,224.56  2,124.98 54.17 3,649.82
preference share) : , ‘ .
Trade and  other 125.93 - ' - - - 125,93
payables ‘ o ' ' :
Financial Liabilities 17.41 ' - . - - - 17.41°
353.24 36.11 1,224.56  2,12498 54,17 3,793.22

32. Capital management

For the purpose -of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity cé,pital,
share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company.
The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder
value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in
economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants, To maintain or adjust the
- capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to sharcholders, retwrn capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
‘net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest
bearing loans and borrowings, trade payables, less cash and cash equivalents.
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Rs. in lakhs

_ March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Borrowings (other than preference sharé) 3,396.51 3,649.82
Trade payables ‘ 133.51 ' 125.93
Less: cash and cash equivalents 27.86 46.62
Net deht . 3,502.16 ' - 3,729.13
Total capital (Including preference share) 1,120.48 942.40
Capital and net debt 4,622.64 4,671.53
Gearing Ratio : - 75.77% 79.83%

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the period
ended March 31, 2023 and 31 March 2022.

33. Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as per MSMEID Act, 2606.

March March
31,2023 | 31,2022

the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any 24..91 6.54
supplier as at the end of each accounting year

the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro| Nil Nil
Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with the amounts of
the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each

accounting year

the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment; Nil | Nil
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under Micro Small and Medium Enterprise
Developmem Act, 2006.

the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpa1d at the end of each| Nil Nil
accounting year; and ‘

| the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding| Nil Nil
years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the
small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure
under section 23 of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act,
2006

34. Segment Reporting

The Company is into Hoteliering business. The Board of Directors of the Company, which has
been identified as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), evaluates the Company
performance, allocate resources based on the analysis of the various performance indicator of the
Company as a single unit. Therefore; there is no reportable segment for the Company as per the
requirements of Tnd AS 108 — “Operating Segments”.

TInformation about geographical areas

The Company has only domestic operations and hence no information requlred for the Company
as per the requirements of Ind AS 108 — “Operating Segments”.
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Information about major customers

During the year ended March 31, 2023, No customer accounted more than 10% of revenue in year.
During the year ended March 31, 2022 detail of customer individually accounted for more than 10%

of the revenue are given below:

Rs in lakhs
Party March 31, 2022
Make My Trip India Pvi. Ltd. £9.03
RUHS College of Medical Science 84.71
Ibibo Group Pvt Ltd 83.49
Agoda.com 40.90
35. Supplementary information as per requirement of Schedule I of the Companies Act.
- A) Detail of shareholding of promoters of the company
As at March 31, 2023
S.No. | Promoter Number of | % of Change | Number Percentage | %
Name shares at total during of shares | of Total change
the Share the “at the end | shares during
beginning Capital | year* of the the year
| of the year : year 2023
. ‘ 2022
1 Lemon tree 10,195,000 100% - | 10,195,000 100% -
Hotels Limited '
As at March 31, 2022
S.No. | Promoter Number of | % of Change | Number Percentage | %
Name shares at total during | of shares | of Total change
the Share the at the end | shares during
beginning Capital | year* of the year the year
of the year 2022
2021 _ ,
I8 Lemon tree 10,195,000 100% - | 10,195,000 100% -
Hotels Limited '
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B) Ratio Analysis and its elements

S.N March | March %
0. Ratio Numerator ‘| Denominator 31,2023 | 31,2022 | Variance | Reason for variance
, ‘ Decrease is mainly due
Current Current _ to unsecured borrowings
1 | Ratio Current asset | liahilites 0.03 0.07 {50.57%) | taken during the year
Debt Equity Shareholder
2 | Ratio Total debt equity 3.03 387 {21.73%)
Debt service | Earnings ' Decrease is mainly due
coverage available for to unsecured borrowings
3 | Ratio debt service | debt service 1.98 0.23 | 1589.36% | taken during the year
: Average
Return on Net profit | shareholders : - | Increase in  profils
4 | Equity after taxes equity 17.34% | (30.12%) 157.56% | during the year
Inventory S Increase in revenue has
Turnover Cost of good | Average lead to increase
5 | Ratio sold Inventory 7.18 4.15 72.98% | inventory levels
Trade
Receivable | '
turnover Net credit Avg. accounts Change is due to increase
6 | Ratio sales receivable 57.99 7.46 677.27% | in reverye during the yar
Trade Net credit ‘
Payables purchase(F& ‘
turnover B & Liquor | Average Trade
7 | Ratio wine) Payable - - - -
Net capital '
Turnover _ _
8 | Ratio Net Sales | Working capital (0.42) {0.38) (8.71%)
Net Profit : ‘ Increase in profit during
9 | Ratio Net Profit Net sales 15.29% | (57.32%) 126.67% | the year
Return on : Increase in profit as
capital - _ Capital compared to previous
10 | employed EBIT employed 3.82% | (7.58%) 150.45% | vear
Income
generated
from
investments(
. Retiirn on Fixed Time weighted
11 | investment Deposits) investments - - -

(i) Earning for Debt Service = Net Profit after taxes + Non-cash operating expenses like depreciation
. and other amortizations + Interest + other adjustments like loss on sale of Fixed assets etc.

(ii) Debt Service = Interest & Lease Payments + Principal chaymeﬁts.

(iii) Capital Employed= Net worth+ Total Debt+Deferred Tax Liability-Net Intangible aseets

C) Trade Receivables ageing schedule:
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As at March 31, 2023

(Rs. in lakhs)

Outstanding for following periods from due date of

payment
Less than | 6 months- | 1-2 ' More than
: Particulars 6 months | 1 year years 2-3 years | 3 years Total
(i) Undisputed : ' ‘
Trade receivables —considered good 20.83 - - - - 20.83
(ii) Undisputed
Trade Receivables ~which have
significant increase in credit risk - - 104.83 0.06 637 111.26

(iii) Undisputed
Trade Receivables —credit impaired:

(iv) Disputed Trade
Receivables—considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables —
“which have significant increase in
credit risk ’ :

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables —
credit impaired

Unbilled Revenue - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2022 (Rs. in lakhs)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of
payment
Less than | 6 months - | 1-2 More than
Particulars 6 months | 1 year years 2-3 years | 3 years Total
(1) Undisputed
Trade receivables —considered good 19.51 - - - - 19.51
(ii) Undisputed
Trade Receivables —which have :
significant increase in credit risk - 104.83 0.06 6.37 -1 111.26

(iii} Undisputed
Trade Receivables --credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade
Receivables—considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables —
which have significant increase in
credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables —
credit impaired

Unbilled Revenue
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D) Trade payables Ageing Schedule:

As at 31% March 2023

(Rs. in lakhs)

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars

'| Less than 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than
3 years

Total

Total outstanding dues of micro |
enterprises and small enterprises

2491

24,91

Total outstanding dues of
credifors other than micro-
enterprises and small enterprises

44.12

0.31

44,43

Disputed dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises

Disputed dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small
enterprises

Unbilled Dues

64.17

6417

' (Rs. in lakhs)

As at March 31, 2022

Particulars

Outstanding for following pericds from due date of payment

Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total

. year : 3 years ‘
Total gutstandmg dues of micro 6.5 4 _ ) ) 6.54
enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors '
other than micro enterprises and 52.85 2.34 0.06 47.44 102.69
small enterprises : -
Disputed dues of micro enterprises i i i i )
and small enterprises _
Disputed dues of creditors other than
micro  enterprises and  small - - - - -
enterprises
Unbilled Dues 16.70 - - - 16.70
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E) Other Statutory Information

(1)

@

(iif)

(iv)
v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(a)

(b)
(ix)

(a)

(b)

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual currency during the -
financial year.

The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of
accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, Search or survey or any other relevant
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Company does not have any Benami property, whete any proceeding has been initiated
or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property

The Company has not entered into any transaction with companies struck off.

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered w1th
ROC beyond the statutory period. :

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section
2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017. '

During the year, the Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangements in terms of
section 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly, the prescribed disclosures of
Schedule ITI are not required to be given. ‘

The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign ent1tles (Intermediaries) with the understandmg that the
Intermediary shall: : -

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or,

provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company has not received any funds from any person(s) or entity(ies), ihcluding foreign
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other pérsons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or,

provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimaie Beneficiaries.

(x) The Company is not required to spend towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as per

Section 135 of the Compames Act, 2013, since there is no average profit in the last 3 years
calculated as per the provisions of the Act




"Sukhsagar Complexes Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

36. The previous year figures have been regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever
necessary to conform to this year’s classification.
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